BY-LAWS

OF

201800433963
Filed for Record in
RIO GRANDE
CINDY HILL, RECORDER
09-17-2018 At 09:40 am.
BY LAWS 43.00
OR Book 573 Page 502 - 508
_Instrument Book Page

593

201800433963 OR

J,

DEER PARK OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

Article I. ADDRESSES

The name of the corporation is Deer Park Owners Association, Inc., a Colorado non-profit corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "Association". The address of the Association is P.O. Box 1051, South Fork, CO 81154. The Association may have such other addresses as the Board of Directors may designate or as the business of the association may require from time to time.

Article II. MEMBERS

SECTION 1. <u>MEMBERS</u>. Members when referred to in these By-Laws are those parties who own certain real property located in Rio Grande County, Colorado, known as Deer Park Subdivision as stated in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Deer Park Subdivision as recorded in the County of Rio Grande Recorder's office on October 7, 1988 and as amended and recorded in August 2002.

SECTION 2. <u>ANNUAL MEETING</u>. The purpose of the meeting shall be to elect Directors and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. Meetings will be conducted in accordance with Roberts Rules of Order.

SECTION 3. <u>TIME OF MEETING</u>. The annual meeting of the membership of the Association shall be held in July each year at such place in or near the Deer Park Subdivision as the Board of the Association shall designate, and the location of the meeting shall be stated in the notice to members of such meeting.

SECTION 4. <u>SPECIAL MEETINGS</u>. Special meetings of the Members, for any purpose or purposes, unless otherwise prescribed by statute, may be called by the President or by the Board of Directors, and shall be called by the President at the request of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of all the Members of the Association.

SECTION 5. <u>NOTICE OF MEETING</u>. Written notice stating the place, day and hour of the meeting and, in the case of special meetings, the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is called, shall unless otherwise prescribed by statute, be delivered not less than ten nor more than fifty days before the date of the meeting, either personally or by mail, by or at the direction of the President, or the Secretary or the persons calling the meeting, to each Member entitled to vote at such meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail, addressed to the Member at his address as it appears on the books of the Association, with postage thereon prepaid, but if three successive letters mailed to the last know address of any Member of record are returned as undeliverable, no further notices to such Member shall be necessary until another address for such Member is made known to the Association.

SECTION 6. QUORUM. A majority of the Members of the Association entitled to vote, represented in person or by proxy, shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of Members. If less than a majority of the Members are represented at a meeting, a majority of the Members so represented may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice. At such adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present or represented, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally noticed. The members present at a duly organized meeting may continue to transact business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough Members to leave less than a quorum.

SECTION 7. <u>MAJORITY OF QUORUM</u>. Unless otherwise expressly provided in these By-Laws or the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, any action which may be taken by the Association may be taken by a majority of a quorum of the Members of the Association.

SECTION 8. PROXIES. At all meetings of Members, a Member may vote in person or by proxy executed in writing by the Member or by his duly authorized attorney in fact. Such proxy shall be filed with the Secretary of the Association before or at the time of the meeting. No proxy shall be valid after eleven months from the date of its execution, unless otherwise provided in the proxy. The proxy shall contain the following:

"(I/We) hereby authorize
To cast (my/our) vote in (my/our) behalf at the meeting to be held on
, 20"

Interest(s) held by a personal representative, guardian or conservator may be voted by him, either in person or by proxy, without a transfer of such membership into his name. Membership standing in the name of a trustee may be voted by him, either in person or by proxy, but no trustee shall be entitled to vote a membership held by him without a transfer of such membership into his name.

Article III. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. GENERAL POWERS. The business and affairs of the Association shall be managed by its Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. NUMBER, TENURE AND QUALIFICATIONS. The number of Directors of the Association shall be three. Each Director shall hold office for a three-year term, being replaced or re-elected at the next annual meeting of Members and until his/her successor shall have been elected and qualified. The Directors' terms shall be aligned to allow for an ongoing rotation of Directors. (i.e. Director 1 is in his/her third year, Director 2 is in his/her second year and Director 3 is in his/her first year. Director 1 would either be replaced or re-elected to a three-year term at the Members annual meeting.) This rotation provides for continuity as well as providing opportunity for any property owner(s) to serve as a Director.

SECTION 3. <u>REGULAR MEETINGS</u>. A regular meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held without other notice than this By-Law immediately after, and at the same place as the annual meeting of Members. The Board of Directors may fix, by resolution, the time and place for the holding of additional regular meetings without other notice than such resolution.

SECTION 4. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the President or any two Directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings of the Board of Directors may fix the time and place for holding any special meeting of the Board of Directors called by them.

SECTION 5. <u>TELEPHONE MEETINGS</u>. Members of the Board of Directors or any committee designated by the Board may participate in any meeting of the Board or Committee by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time. Such participation shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.

SECTION 6. NOTICE. Notice of any special meeting shall be given at least three days previously thereto by written notice delivered personally or mailed to each Director at his address. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid. Any Director may waive notice of any meeting. The attendance of a Director at the meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

SECTION 7. QUORUM. A majority of the number of Directors fixed by Section 2 of this Article III shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors, but if less than such majority is present at a meeting, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

SECTION 8. MANNER OF ACTING. The act of the majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 9. ACTION WITHOUT A MEETING. Any action that may betaken by the Board of Directors at a meeting may be taken without a meeting if consent in writing, setting forth the action so to be taken, shall be signed by all the Directors.

SECTION 10. <u>VACANCIES</u>. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining Directors though less than a quorum of the board of Directors. A Director elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected for the unexpired term of his predecessor in office. Any Directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of Directors may be filled by election by the Board of Directors for a term of office continuing only until the next election of Directors by the Members.

SECTION 11. <u>COMPENSATION</u>. No Director may be paid any compensation.

SECTION 12. PRESUMPTION OF ASSENT. A director of the Association who is present at a meeting of the Board of Directors at which action on any Association matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless his dissent shall be entered in the minutes of the meeting or unless he shall file his written dissent to such action with the person acting as the Secretary of the meeting before the adjournment thereof or shall forward such dissent by registered mail to the Secretary of the Association immediately after the adjournment of the meeting. Such right to dissent shall not apply to a Director who voted in favor of such action.

Article IV. OFFICERS

SECTION 1. <u>NUMBER</u>. The officers of the Association shall be a President, a Vice-President, and a Secretary/Treasurer, each of whom shall be elected by the Board of Directors.

Such other officers and assistant officers as may be deemed necessary may be elected or appointed by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary/Treasurer. The officers of the Association shall be natural persons of the age of eighteen years or older.

SECTION 2. ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE. The officers of the Association to be elected by the Board of Directors shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the first meeting of the Board of Directors held after each annual meeting of the Members. If the election of officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as conveniently possible. Each officer shall hold office until his/her successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified or until his/her death or until he/she shall resign or shall have been removed in the manner hereinafter provided.

SECTION 3. REMOVAL. Any officer or agent may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment, the best interests of the Association will be served thereby, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed. Election or appointment of an officer or agent shall not of itself create contract rights.

SECTION 4. <u>VACANCIES</u>. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise, may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

SECTION 5. PRESIDENT. The President shall be the principal executive officer of the Association and, subject to the control of the Board of Directors, shall in general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the Association. He/she shall, when present, preside at all meetings of the Members and of the Board of Directors, unless a different Chairperson has been otherwise designated or elected. He/she may sign, with the Secretary or any other proper officer of the Association thereunto authorized by the Board of Directors, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments which the board of Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these By-Laws to some other officer or agenda of the Association, or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed; and in general shall perform all duties incident to the office of the President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

SECTION 6. <u>VICE-PRESIDENT</u>. In the absence of the President or in the event of death, inability or refusal to act, the Vice-President shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President. The Vice-President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him by the President or by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 7. SECRETARY/TREASURER. The Secretary/Treasurer shall

- (a) Keep the minutes of the proceedings of the Members and of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose;
- (b) See that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these By-Laws or as required by law;
- (c) Be custodian of the corporate records and of the seal of the Association and see that the seal of the Association is affixed to all documents the execution of which on behalf of the Association under its seal is duly authorized;
- (d) Keep a register of the post office address of each Member which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such Member;
- (e) Have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Association;
- (f) Receive and give receipts for monies due and payable to the Association from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such monies in the name of the Association in such banks, trust companies or other depositaries as shall be selected in accordance with the provision of Article V of these By-Laws;
- (g) And in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary/Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him/her by the President or by the Board of Directors. If required by the Board of Directors, the Secretary/Treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of these duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine and will provide each Member a current financial statement at each annual meeting.

SECTION 8. COMPENSATION. No compensation will be paid to any officer.

Article V. CONTRACTS, LOANS, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS

SECTION 1. <u>CONTRACTS</u>. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Association, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

SECTION 2. <u>LOANS</u>. No loans shall be contracted on behalf of the Association and no evidences of indebtedness shall be issued in its name unless authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

SECTION 3. <u>CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC.</u> All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Association, shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Association and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 4. DEPOSITS. All funds of the Association not otherwise employed shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Association in such banks, savings institutions, trust companies or other depositaries as the Board of Directors may select.

SECTION 5. ASSESSMENTS. It is not intended that regular, annual assessments will exceed \$300.00 per lot.

Article VI. FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Association shall begin on July 1 and end on June 30 in each year.

Article VII. CORPORATE SEAL

The Board of Directors shall provide an Association seal which shall be either circular in form and shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Association and the state of incorporation and the word "Seal" or shall be a rubber seal in substantially the same form as provided above.

Article VIII. WAIVER OF NOTICE

Unless otherwise provided by law, whenever any notice is required to be given to any Member or Director of the Association under the provisions of these By-Laws or under the provisions of the Colorado Corporation Code, a waiver thereof in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

Article IX. AMENDMENTS

These By-Laws may be altered, amended or repealed and new By-Laws may be adopted by the Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors, subject to the rights of Members to repeal or amend By-Laws as provided by law.

DEER PARK OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

K-Pal	<u></u>
President	BETHNEY A COLEMAN NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF COLORADO)	STATE OF COLORADO NOTARY ID# 20184017777 MY COMMISSION EXPIRES APR 24, 2022
COUNTY OF RIO GRANDE)	
The forgoing instrument was ackr	nowledged before me this 14 day of September
2018, by Bothne Kelly	Reed of Deer Park Owners Association, Inc.
Witness my hand and official seal Black Community Public	
	29889 US Hwy 160 South Fork CO 81154 otary Address
	South Fork CO 81154
N	otary City, State, Zip
My Commission Expires:	-il 24, 2002